Document:-
A/CN.4/3200

Summary record of the 3200th meeting

Topic:
<multiple topics>

Extract from the Yearbook of the International Law Commission:-
2014, vol. |

Downloaded from the web site of the International Law Commission
(http://legal.un.org/ilc/)

Copyright © United Nations


http://legal.un.org/ilc/

10 Summary records of the first part of the sixty-sixth session

in any way match the criteria for attribution of conduct
applicable under the law of international responsibility.
It would also be necessary to explain its link with the cri-
terion of control stemming from draft article 9, or in any
event to draw a clearer distinction between control over
persons by the sending State or organization, and control
over the relief operation by the affected State.

30. Mr. TLADI, noting that the Special Rapporteur jus-
tified the duty set forth in draft article 14 bis by reference
to a number of treaties and instruments that imposed a
similar duty, underscored the need also to take account
of the various treaty contexts in which that duty was laid
down. Treaties containing such a duty to protect were
based on the understanding that there must be coopera-
tion between the affected and the assisting State, where
the unqualified consent of the former was the precondi-
tion of that duty. Even though the Special Rapporteur held
that this was the approach taken in the draft articles, it
was questionable whether that was really the case. Admit-
tedly he mentioned the notions of consent, sovereignty
and non-intervention, but it must not be forgotten that
the Commission had decided, rightly or wrongly, not to
rule out the possibility of overriding those principles in
circumstances which were ill defined. Quite apart from
the crucial question of who decided whether the affected
State had arbitrarily refused assistance, or whether it
had the capacity to respond to a disaster, in view of the
inseparable link between consent and the duty mentioned
in article 14 bis, it was worth asking whether it would
be logical to impose a duty to protect relief personnel,
equipment and goods when external assistance was given
after consent had been withheld in what was deemed to
be an arbitrary manner. As with other provisions, that ex-
ample illustrated the futility of a rights-based approach
as opposed to an approach based on cooperation, espe-
cially as the latter was consistent with international law
and State practice.

31. While he was not against the referral of draft art-
icle 14 bis to the Drafting Committee, he would prefer
the draft article to speak of “reasonable”, “practical” or
“appropriate” rather than “necessary” measures. He also
supported the referral of draft article 17, but considered

that draft articles 18 and 19 were superfluous.

32. Mr. PETRIC was pleased that a balance had been
kept between the sovereignty of a State affected by a dis-
aster—from which its consent to assistance flowed—and
the obligation to cooperate, meaning that the affected
State could not refuse such assistance arbitrarily when it
did not have the capacity to cope with a disaster. Although
he supported the referral of all the proposed draft articles
to the Drafting Committee, he considered that draft art-
icle 14 bis should be recast to make the duty it contained
less rigid, that draft article 19 was not absolutely neces-
sary and that a definition of “disaster prevention” could be
added to draft article 3 bis.

Organization of the work of the session (continued)
[Agenda item 1]

33. The Working Group on the obligation to extra-
dite or prosecute (aut dedere aut judicare) consisted

of: Mr. Kittichaisaree (Chairperson), Mr. El-Murtadi
Suleiman Gouider, Ms. Escobar Herniandez, Mr. For-
teau, Mr. Laraba, Mr. Murphy, Mr. Park, Mr. Sturma,
Mr. Vazquez-Bermtidez and Mr. Tladi (ex officio).

34. The Planning Group consisted of: Mr. Murase
(Chairperson), Mr. Caflisch, Mr. Comissario Afonso,
Mr. El-Murtadi Suleiman Gouider, Ms. Escobar Hernan-
dez, Mr. Forteau, Mr. Hassouna, Mr. Hmoud, Ms. Jacobs-
son, Mr. Kamto, Mr. Kittichaisaree, Mr. Laraba,
Mr. McRae, Mr. Murphy, Mr. Nolte, Mr. Park, Mr. Petric,
Mr. Saboia, Mr. Singh, Mr. Sturma, Mr. Valencia-Ospina,
Mr. Vazquez-Bermudez, Mr. Wisnumurti, Sir Michael
Wood and Mr. Tladi (ex officio).

The meeting rose at 1.05 p.m.

3200th MEETING
Wednesday, 7 May 2014, at 10.05 a.m.
Chairperson: Mr. Kirill GEVORGIAN

Present: Mr. Al-Marri, Mr. Caflisch, Mr. Candioti,
Mr. El-Murtadi Suleiman Gouider, Ms. Escobar Hernan-
dez, Mr. Forteau, Mr. Hassouna, Mr. Hmoud, Mr. Kamto,
Mr. Kittichaisaree, Mr. Laraba, Mr. Murase, Mr. Murphy,
Mr. Niehaus, Mr. Nolte, Mr. Park, Mr. Peter, Mr. Petric,
Mr. Saboia, Mr. Singh, Mr. Sturma, Mr. Tladi, Mr. Valen-
cia-Ospina, Mr. Vazquez-Bermudez, Mr. Wisnumurti.

Protection of persons in the event of disasters (continued)
(AJ/CN.4/666, Part 11, sect. C, A/ICN.4/668 and Add.1,
A/CN.4/L.831)

[Agenda item 4]

SEVENTH REPORT OF THE
SPECIAL RAPPORTEUR (continued)

1. The CHAIRPERSON invited the Commission to
resume its consideration of the seventh report of the Spe-
cial Rapporteur on the protection of persons in the event
of disasters (A/CN.4/668 and Add.1).

2. Mr. MURPHY said that the issue of protection of
relief personnel and their equipment and goods was not
well anchored in national laws. Laws that dealt with dis-
aster situations focused on the admission of personnel
and goods and generally did not address their protection.
Any protection available for disaster relief personnel and
goods deployed from one State to another was embedded
in relevant bilateral or multilateral international agree-
ments. Accordingly, it made sense to look to international
agreements and instruments for guidance, as the Special
Rapporteur was doing.

3. Those instruments reflected a consistent belief that
States receiving assistance in disaster-related operations
in which foreign personnel were deployed were under an



3200th meeting—7 May 2014 11

obligation consisting of three elements: a legal obligation
to ensure protection, or at least to take reasonable steps to
protect; the imposition of that obligation upon the State
receiving the assistance; and the inclusion of both person-
nel and their goods and equipment within the scope of the
obligation. There appeared to be no significant contrary
practice in which States receiving assistance denied any
responsibility to take appropriate measures for the pro-
tection of personnel or goods. In his view, the obligation
had thus passed into customary international law. Draft
article 14 was the logical place to capture it.

4. The question arose, however, as to whether the
exact text of the proposed draft article 14 bis accurately
expressed the obligation. The wording of the article—
“[t]he affected State shall take all necessary measures
to ensure the protection of relief personnel, equipment
and goods”—was rather strong and might be viewed as
imposing an obligation of result. Consequently, a failure
by a State to take the measures necessary to ensure the
required protection would constitute a violation of the
obligation.

5. However, it was clear from the Special Rapporteur’s
seventh report that two types of obligations were at issue:
an obligation of result and an obligation of conduct. For
matters directly under its control, the affected State was
under an obligation of result, requiring it, for example,
to prevent its own organs from being directly involved
in detrimental activities with regard to relief personnel.
By contrast, with respect to the activities of non-State
actors, the affected State was under an obligation of con-
duct, which only required it to undertake due diligence in
endeavouring to guarantee protection.

6. The distinction was borne out to a certain extent by
treaty practice. Treaties that addressed situations when
the conduct of the receiving State itself posed the major
risk to foreign personnel formulated the obligation as one
of result: the State must ensure protection. By contrast,
treaties dealing with disaster situations in which such
risks came from non-State actors adopted a more cautious
approach, only requiring States, for example, to make
their best efforts to provide protection.

7. However, the distinction between obligations of
result and of conduct was not reflected in the proposed
draft article 14 bis. The proposed language—an obligation
to “take all necessary measures to ensure the protection
of relief personnel”—could be construed as an obligation
of result, whereas he believed the Special Rapporteur
had intended to blend obligations of result and conduct.
In order to avoid ambiguity, the draft article could be
reworded to contain two different standards: one impos-
ing an obligation of result with respect to the affected
State’s own treatment of relief personnel and equipment,
and the other imposing an obligation of conduct with re-
spect to risks from non-State actors. The current wording
of draft article 14 bis might suffice for the former, while
one of the formulations proposed by Mr. Park might be
appropriate for the latter.

8. With respect to draft articles 17, 18 and 19, he agreed
with Mr. Murase that consideration should be given to col-
lapsing them into a single article, since they overlapped.

9. If one assumed that the draft articles would not ulti-
mately become a treaty, then draft article 17 would prob-
ably not be necessary, since even if some or all of the
draft articles were found to be customary international
law, States could conclude treaties that would have pre-
cedence. However, if one assumed that the draft articles
would become a treaty and one wanted prior agreements
to prevail over the new rules to be contained therein, then
draft article 17 should be retained. The Drafting Com-
mittee might then consider replacing the words “special
rules of international law” with “treaties” in order to
avoid overlap with draft article 18.

10. As to draft article 18, he would insert the word
“customary” before “international law” in order to make
clear that the draft articles did not, as lex specialis, wholly
displace other rules in customary international law. Draft
article 19 seemed unnecessary, given that the Charter of
the United Nations trumped customary law and other con-
flicting treaties.

11. Draft articles 3 bis, 14 bis, 17, 18 and 19 should all
be referred to the Drafting Committee.

12.  Mr. AL-MARRI said that the domestic legal order
of the affected State must enable the provision of inter-
national assistance in situations of disaster, but more im-
portantly, measures should be taken to ensure the safety
and security of humanitarian personnel deployed in the
territory of that State throughout the relief operation.

13. The host State’s consent was required for the pro-
vision of external assistance. Such a requirement was
contained in various instruments defining the legal frame-
work of international assistance and relief operations in
affected States, which comprised the obligation of non-
State actors to seek the affected State’s consent to receive
assistance; the role of that State in coordinating assistance
efforts with relief actors; and its duty to protect relief per-
sonnel and their equipment and goods. In that regard, the
Special Rapporteur had distinguished between an obliga-
tion of result and an obligation of conduct. A duty to pro-
tect could be equated with a commitment to act. Beyond
its efforts to protect relief personnel, their equipment and
goods, therefore, a State was required to prosecute the
perpetrators of illegal acts.

14. Generally speaking, the draft articles should reflect
the pertinent norms contained in international instruments
in order to avoid any discrepancy. Similarly, they should
echo the norms of customary international law.

15. The seventh report was characterized by clarity, bal-
ance and inclusiveness. The proposed new draft articles
were acceptable and were compatible with all the draft
articles already adopted by the Commission.

16. Mr. HMOUD said that, on the whole, he endorsed
the new draft articles proposed by the Special Rappor-
teur and recommended sending them to the Drafting
Committee.

17. Regarding draft article 14 bis, he said that the cap-
acity to conduct relief operations was significantly ham-
pered if the safety of relief personnel, equipment and



12 Summary records of the first part of the sixty-sixth session

goods was at risk. Hence the need for the draft articles to
provide sufficient legal protection for the latter without
placing an undue burden on the affected State during situ-
ations of vulnerability, when its capacity to assume legal
responsibilities might be undermined. He agreed with the
Special Rapporteur that the affected State’s obligation in
that context was one of conduct, not of result. That obliga-
tion was centred on the positive measures that the affected
State had to take to prevent attacks on and mitigate risks
to the safety and security of relief workers, including any
risks that might result from acts by the State’s own organs
or agents.

18. However, the proposition set out in paragraph 36 of
the seventh report of the Special Rapporteur went beyond
such safety and security measures, suggesting that affected
States should extend immunity from their jurisdiction to
relief personnel. That had no basis in general international
law, and several of the instruments cited in the report made
it clear that the duty of protection was distinct from the
issue of immunity. It was therefore important to clarify in
the commentary to draft article 14 bis that its scope was
confined to measures designed to ensure the safety and se-
curity of relief personnel and their equipment and goods
and did not extend to immunity. The affected State and
relief actors involved must be left to resolve the question
of immunity in their bilateral and multilateral agreements.
That would be consistent with the premise of the entire set
of draft articles, which created a well-crafted balance be-
tween the rights and obligations of the various actors.

19. He agreed with the Special Rapporteur that the goal
of draft article 14 bis was to create an obligation of con-
duct, giving the affected State a margin of appreciation in
deciding which measures needed to be adopted to ensure
the safety of relief workers, as long as it exercised due dili-
gence in difficult and unpredictable circumstances. The
wording of the text should reflect those considerations.

20. Turning to the other new draft articles, he agreed
that the special rules in bilateral and multilateral instru-
ments should prevail over any general rule in the draft
articles that was inconsistent with them. Draft article 17
merely expressed that general rule on lex specialis, how-
ever, and he was therefore flexible about its inclusion.
Draft article 18 appeared useful in that it indicated that
the rules contained in the draft articles were intended to
be binding and general in nature. While not strictly ne-
cessary, draft article 19 might have positive policy con-
sequences regarding the primacy of the legal principles
contained in the Charter of the United Nations.

21. With respect to article 3 bis, the definition of “af-
fected State” should include not only the State’s territory
but also the territory under its control. That was especially
pertinent since the protection offered under other legal
regimes might not be sufficient during a disaster situation.

22.  Mr. WISNUMURTI said that he supported the in-
clusion of draft article 14 bis in the set of draft articles,
but thought that its wording should be less prescriptive, in
order to more adequately reflect the principle that the ob-
ligation to protect relief personnel, equipment and goods
was an obligation of conduct, not of result. One way to
accomplish that would be to replace the words “necessary

measures” with “appropriate measures”. A more detailed
description of the nature of that obligation could then be
included in the commentary to the draft article.

23. He shared the Special Rapporteur’s view that, in
order to minimize the security risks for relief personnel,
the affected State should be required to show due dili-
gence by taking the necessary preventive measures. Simi-
larly, before sending relief personnel to the affected State,
the assisting State should take measures to reduce any
danger that such personnel might take advantage of the
chaos caused by the disaster to engage in unlawful activ-
ities that were detrimental to the security interests of the
affected State.

24. He concurred with the Special Rapporteur that the
manner in which draft article 17 was currently worded
was to be preferred to a “without prejudice” clause. Draft
article 18 was essential for further clarifying the scope
of the draft articles and supplementing them, and draft
article 19 was an important umbrella provision aimed at
ensuring that the draft articles did not undermine the basic
principles embodied in the Charter of the United Nations.
With those comments and suggestions, he was in favour of
referring all five draft articles to the Drafting Committee.

25. Ms. ESCOBAR HERNANDEZ suggested that, given
the close relationship between draft article 14 on facilitation
of external assistance and the proposed draft article 14 bis,
they might be recast as two paragraphs of a single article.
That would have the advantage of providing a full view of
the obligations imposed on the affected State regarding the
provision of external assistance in its territory. She fully
endorsed the notion that the obligation enunciated in draft
article 14 bis was one of conduct; however, that did not
preclude taking into consideration its clearly results-based
aspect, which was to ensure the protection of relief person-
nel, equipment and goods. Lastly, for the wording of the
draft article, she shared the preference expressed by other
members of the Commission for the expression “appro-
priate measures” over that of “necessary measures”.

26. Draft articles 17, 18 and 19 were all aimed at defin-
ing the relationship between the draft articles and other
international rules that might be applicable to disasters
and the protection of persons in the event of disasters.
Although the Special Rapporteur had made a laudable
attempt to catalogue all the permutations of that relation-
ship, with a formulation for each, she was not sure that
such an endeavour was either desirable or necessary. In her
view, draft article 19 was superfluous; the primacy of the
obligations arising from the Charter of the United Nations
was achieved through the direct application of Article 103
of the Charter, and did not depend on the establishment of
additional rules of international law. Moreover, in view
of the Commission’s status as an organ of the United Na-
tions, any reference to the compatibility of the Charter of
the United Nations with draft articles elaborated by the
Commission was totally unnecessary.

27. It was unclear why proposed draft articles 17 and
18 had been based on separate models, and the Special
Rapporteur’s arguments to support that choice were not
entirely convincing. The distinction between the two
contingencies described in those texts would have been



3200th meeting—7 May 2014 13

justified had each referred to a different category of rules,
such as rules of customary and treaty-based law, but that
did not seem to be the case. She therefore did not see the
utility of including draft article 18 in the project. Perhaps
the Drafting Committee might find language that could
cover both contingencies in a single article, whose focus
would primarily be that of draft article 17, or else resolve
the Special Rapporteur’s concern by means of a reference
in the commentary to draft article 17. Subject to that sug-
gestion, she was not opposed to referring all three draft
articles to the Drafting Committee, if that was the consen-
sus of the majority of the members of the Commission.

28. Generally speaking, she shared the Special Rap-
porteur’s views with regard to draft article 3 bis but had
several comments to make. First, with regard to the defini-
tion of “affected State”, she proposed that a reference to
the territory under the State’s jurisdiction or territory under
its jurisdiction or control be inserted [territorio sometido
a su jurisdiccién or territorio sometido a su jurisdiccion
o0 control]. The stated objective of the draft articles fully
confirmed that they referred to all the territories that might
be under the jurisdiction or control of the affected State,
which might not be limited exclusively to its territory itself.

29. Second, there was a contradiction in draft art-
icle 3 bis, subparagraphs (c) and (f), between the meaning
ascribed to the phrase “any other entity or person” in the
first instance and to “private and corporate entities” in
the second. In subparagraph (c), the implication was that
the subjects in question were distinct from NGOs, whereas
in the second instance, they were given as an example of a
relevant NGO. Although the Special Rapporteur explained
the reasons for referring to those entities differently in
each case, she did not find his arguments to be sufficiently
persuasive. If the objective was to include any private en-
tity that provided disaster relief assistance, irrespective of
the way that this entity had been set up, then it was suf-
ficient to use the term “non-governmental organization”
without further addition or qualification. Moreover, sub-
paragraph (f) added nothing new to the generic concept of
non-governmental organization that was already defined
in subparagraph (c). On the contrary, the addition of the
adjective “relevant” seemed risky and not very useful,
given the variety of NGOs that participated in the system
of disaster relief assistance, not to mention the practical
problems that could arise when attempting to determine
whether a particular NGO was “relevant”. Perhaps the con-
cerns that had prompted the Special Rapporteur to include
that definition in the draft article and to draw a distinction
between subparagraphs (c) and (f) might be resolved in the
commentary to draft article 3 bis.

30. Third, she agreed with the view that draft article 3
and draft article 3 bis should be recast as a single art-
icle. Maintaining draft article 3 as a separate provision
was justified only if it was intended to define the scope
of application of the draft articles; however, that did not
appear to be the Special Rapporteur’s aim. Thus, if the
Commission was going to adopt a general article on
the use of terms, as was proposed in draft article 3 bis,
the definition of “disaster” should be included with the
other definitions and, given its importance, it should be
placed at the top of the list.

31. Mr. STURMA said he agreed with the Special Rap-
porteur that the obligation of protection was an obligation
of conduct. As a result, he would prefer the obligation
imposed on the affected State to be for it to take “all ap-
propriate measures” rather than “all necessary measures”.
That said, the difference between obligations of conduct
and obligations of result referred to by Mr. Murphy was
worth taking up in the Drafting Committee. He recom-
mended referring draft article 14 bis to the Drafting
Committee.

32. With regard to the general provisions contained in
draft articles 17, 18 and 19, he did not find it necessary to
have two separate provisions, one on lex specialis (art. 17)
and the other on other applicable rules of international law
(art. 18). While the first was fully justified and well sup-
ported by examples of treaty practice, the second seemed
superfluous and unclear. Although similar provisions had
been included in article 56 of the articles on responsibility
of States for internationally wrongful acts,® the two situ-
ations were actually quite different: State responsibility
represented a large corpus of customary norms of inter-
national law, whereas the present topic relied mostly on
treaty law and soft-law instruments, thus, to a large ex-
tent, involving the progressive development of interna-
tional law. The outcome of the Commission’s work on the
topic should preferably be a framework convention that
included general rules.

33. As to draft article 19, even though it might seem
unnecessary to include an express reminder that the
draft articles were without prejudice to the Charter of the
United Nations, he was nevertheless in favour of retain-
ing it. Despite the fact that, in most cases, the protection
of persons and disaster response operated on the basis of
a voluntary offer of external assistance and its accept-
ance by the affected State, that legal framework could
change radically. For example, a disaster might be of such
magnitude that the Security Council adopted a binding
resolution on an international operation to provide hu-
manitarian assistance to its victims. In such a case, the
Security Council resolution would take precedence over
the general rules contained in the draft articles and even
over special bilateral or multilateral agreements. He was
consequently in favour of referring draft articles 17 and
19 to the Drafting Committee.

34. He would also recommend referring draft art-
icle 3 bis to the Drafting Committee, and was convinced
that it would benefit from several drafting improvements,
such as the insertion in subparagraph (a) of the words “or
under whose jurisdiction” and “environment”.

35. Mr. TLADI suggested that the legal situation out-
lined by Mr. Sturma would prevail, even without the in-
clusion of the draft article 19 in the draft articles: under
Article 103 of the Charter of the United Nations, a Se-
curity Council resolution of the kind just described would
always override the draft articles, would it not?

3 General Assembly resolution 56/83 of 12 December 2001, annex.
See the draft articles on responsibility of States for internationally
wrongful acts adopted by the Commission at its fifty-third session and
the commentaries thereto in Yearbook ... 2001, vol. Il (Part Two) and
corrigendum, pp. 26 et seq., paras. 76-77.



14 Summary records of the first part of the sixty-sixth session

36. Mr. STURMA said that he considered draft art-
icle 19 to be useful but not essential. He agreed that the
legal value of the obligations arising from the Charter of
the United Nations would be the same, irrespective of
whether an express provision such as the one in draft art-
icle 19 was included in the draft articles.

37. Mr. HASSOUNA said that a separate provision on
the protection of relief personnel, equipment and goods,
such as that proposed in draft article 14 bis, was an apt
addition to the draft articles and was in keeping with the
main universal and regional treaties that dealt with dis-
asters. Although the Special Rapporteur had explained
in his seventh report that the measures adopted by the
affected State to provide such protection might differ in
content, the language of the proposed text itself was rather
terse, providing merely that the affected State “shall take
all necessary measures”. He agreed with the proposal to
replace the term “necessary measures” with “appropriate
measures” and proposed that a clear indication as to what
sorts of measures were meant should be included in the
commentary. He further proposed to indicate explicitly
in the draft article that the affected State must have con-
sented to the presence of any relief personnel, equipment
and goods that were in its territory.

38. The question of whether and under what circum-
stances the protection of relief personnel should be reserved
to the military and police forces of the affected State could
benefit from further elaboration in the commentary or even
in the draft article itself. In addition, draft article 14 bis
should indicate that the necessary measures were related
to security concerns, while leaving it to the commentary
to explain the context. The Special Rapporteur’s point that
international humanitarian actors could help to mitigate
security risks by taking steps to reduce their own vulner-
ability might also be highlighted in the commentary.

39. The affected State’s international obligation to “ensure
the protection” of relief organizations under article 14 bis
should be limited by the State’s capacity during the dis-
aster. In some major disaster situations, the State’s ability
to meet its basic obligations towards its citizens was ques-
tionable at best. Although the report used flexible language,
suggesting that “best efforts” and “cooperation” were at the
centre of the obligations in article 14 bis, the wording over-
all seemed to create a more mandatory framework.

40. In his seventh report, the Special Rapporteur did not
resolve the problem of unwillingness or inability on the
part of the sending State to ensure the protection of the
aid it provided. In such a case, it might have to negotiate a
bilateral agreement with the affected State or despatch aid
through a neutral organization like the United Nations, for
example.

41. Since draft articles 17 and 18 dealt with closely
related matters, they could be merged. In addition, draft
article 18 should specify which were the “applicable
rules”: rules of general international law or other sources
of international law, such as custom.

42. He questioned the need for a separate provi-
sion like draft article 19, although he recognized that it
would strengthen the leading role of the United Nations

in disaster management. The fact that obligations under
the Charter of the United Nations took precedence over
others was universally recognized. However, if the draft
articles were subsequently adopted in the form of a con-
vention, a reference to the Charter might be included in
the preamble.

43. The methodology used for establishing the def-
initions in draft article 3 bis was commendable, but he
shared the view that, in subparagraph (a), a reference to
the environment should be added and the term “territory”
should be defined as the territory under the effective juris-
diction of the State. The criterion of effective jurisdiction,
rather than mere territory, defined the obligation of a State
towards individuals, as recognized in the case law and in
paragraph 89 of the report. While he understood the Spe-
cial Rapporteur’s wish to avoid a debate on extraterritorial
jurisdiction, which was more the exception than the rule,
he considered it advisable to make the scope of the State’s
obligations as comprehensive and clear as possible. Sub-
paragraph (f), containing the definition of “relevant non-
governmental organization”, raised some difficult issues
and needed to be refined, and some other terms frequently
used throughout the draft articles, such as “victims of a
disaster”, could be added to the list of definitions. In con-
clusion, he supported the referral of all the draft articles to
the Drafting Committee.

44. Mr. SABOIA said that in his seventh report, the Spe-
cial Rapporteur had given convincing factual examples
and legal precedents for the need to have a separate
provision on protection of relief personnel, equipment
and goods from the security risks to which they might
be exposed in the aftermath of serious calamities. He
endorsed the comment made earlier that only those States
and non-State actors that had actually received the con-
sent of the affected State to their presence in its terri-
tory were entitled to such protection. He also endorsed
the suggestion to replace “all necessary measures”, with
“all appropriate measures”, a more flexible formulation.
However, it was difficult and perhaps unnecessary to
draw a distinction between what constituted an obligation
of conduct and what constituted an obligation of result.
In paragraph 36 of his seventh report, the Special Rap-
porteur referred to the negative obligations assumed by
the affected State with regard to the conduct of its own
agents, as opposed to the positive obligations applicable
to the control of other agents. He understood the former
to be stricter and subject to a higher threshold of diligence
than the latter. Ultimately, however, what mattered most
was the circumstances on the ground and the ability and
willingness of the affected State to exercise its authority.

45. Articles 17 to 19 could be referred to the Drafting
Committee. The same applied to draft article 3 bis. Like
other members, he was in favour of including a reference
to the territory over which the State exercised jurisdiction,
to make the text more comprehensive and more in line with
other instruments on the protection of the human person.

46. Mr. EL-MURTADI SULEIMAN GOUIDER
observed that much of the debate had focused on draft
article 14 bis and how to define an obligation of con-
duct as opposed to an obligation of result. He had no
particular difficulty with the wording of draft article 17,



3201st meeting—8 May 2014 15

which reflected the wording used in the articles on dip-
lomatic protection.®® He saw no need for further discus-
sion on draft article 19, as the primacy of the obligations
under the Charter of the United Nations over obligations
under other international agreements was self-evident.
The terminology issue raised in connection with draft art-
icle 3 bis should be dealt with in the Drafting Committee.
In conclusion, he was in favour of the referral of all the
draft articles to the Drafting Committee.

47. Mr. CANDIOTI said that the Commission was
about to conclude its work on a very topical subject, as
borne out by a recent United States Government report
on the proliferation of natural disasters caused by climate
change. He agreed on the need for draft article 14 bis
and welcomed Mr. Murase’s comment on the importance
of a distinction between military and civilian personnel
and Mr. Murphy’s remark on the characteristics of State
compared with non-State agents. As to the wording of
draft article 14 bis, the proposal to replace “all necessary
measures” with “all appropriate measures” would afford
greater flexibility and should be taken up in the Drafting
Committee, which should also consider the question of
qualifying the term “territory”.

48. He shared the view that, since they were general pro-
visions, articles 17 to 19 were not necessary but useful. If
they were included in the text, he would prefer them to
appear as separate articles.

49. Draft article 3 bis was essential but required further
work by the Drafting Committee. Under the current topic,
the term “person” referred exclusively to human beings,
whereas in the area of diplomatic protection there was a
distinction between natural and legal persons; perhaps
that point could be clarified in the commentary. Further-
more, since there would eventually be more than 20 draft
articles, the Drafting Committee might wish to reorganize
them and consider the possibility of drafting a preamble
to provide greater clarity.

50. Mr. SINGH said that, in principle, he supported
the inclusion of draft article 14 bis. In his seventh report,
the Special Rapporteur described in detail the legal basis
for the duty of the affected State to protect the person-
nel, equipment and goods of the assisting State or entity.
The draft articles adopted so far recognized a basic tenet
of humanitarian assistance: that external assistance dur-
ing a disaster situation took place with the consent of the
affected State, which also had the primary role in the con-
trol, supervision and coordination of relief activities. Para-
graph 32 of the report stated that once the affected State
had accepted the offers of assistance submitted by rele-
vant external actors, it should endeavour to guarantee the
protection of the relief personnel, equipment and goods
involved. He endorsed the statement in paragraph 38 of
the report that the duty to protect relief personnel, their
goods and equipment was an obligation of conduct and
not of result, requiring States to act in a reasonably cau-
tious and diligent manner to guarantee protection by
attempting to avoid harmful events.

¥ General Assembly resolution 62/67 of 6 December 2007, annex.
See the draft articles on diplomatic protection adopted by the Commis-
sion at its fifty-eighth session and the commentaries thereto in Year-
book ... 2006, vol. Il (Part Two), pp. 24 et seq., paras. 49-50.

51. He was in favour of the referral of draft article 14 bis
to the Drafting Committee, subject to the review of the
“all necessary measures” clause. He expressed support
for draft article 17 and its referral to the Drafting Com-
mittee and endorsed Mr. Murase’s suggestion to merge
it with draft articles 18 and 19. Lastly, he agreed that
draft article 3 bis should also be referred to the Drafting
Committee.

52. Mr. KITTICHAISAREE said that the draft articles
contained in the seventh report must be understood in
light of the draft articles provisionally adopted thus far,
especially with respect to sovereignty and the consent of
the affected State. He endorsed the views expressed by
Mr. Park on draft articles 17 and 18 and shared the doubts
of Mr. Hassouna and other members about the need for
draft article 19.

Organization of the work of the session (continued)
[Agenda item 1]

53. Mr. SABOIA (Chairperson of the Drafting Com-
mittee) said that the Drafting Committee on the topic of
protection of persons in the event of disasters was com-
posed of Mr. Forteau, Mr. Hmoud, Mr. Kittichaisaree,
Ms. Jacobsson, Mr. Murase, Mr. Murphy, Mr. Park,
Mr. Petric, Mr. Singh, Mr. Vazquez-Bermudez and Sir
Michael Wood, together with Mr. Valencia-Ospina (Spe-
cial Rapporteur) and Mr. Tladi (Rapporteur), ex officio.

The meeting rose at 12.55 p.m.

3201st MEETING
Thursday, 8 May 2014, at 10.05 a.m.
Chairperson: Mr. Kirill GEVORGIAN

Present: Mr. Al-Marri, Mr. Candioti, Mr. El-Murtadi
Suleiman Gouider, Ms. Escobar Hernandez, Mr. Forteau,
Mr. Hassouna, Mr. Hmoud, Mr. Kamto, Mr. Kittichai-
saree, Mr. Laraba, Mr. Murase, Mr. Murphy, Mr. Niehaus,
Mr. Nolte, Mr. Park, Mr. Peter, Mr. Petri¢, Mr. Saboia,
Mr. Singh, Mr. Sturma, Mr. Tladi, Mr. Valencia-Ospina,
Mr. Vazquez-Bermudez, Mr. Wisnumurti.

Protection of persons in the event of disasters (continued)
(A/CN.4/666, Part 11, sect. C, A/CN.4/668 and Add.1,
A/CN.4/L.831)

[Agenda item 4]

SEVENTH REPORT OF THE
SPECIAL RAPPORTEUR (concluded)

1. The CHAIRPERSON invited the Commission to
resume its consideration of the seventh report of the Spe-
cial Rapporteur on the protection of persons in the event
of disasters (A/CN.4/668 and Add.1).





